

REMARKS

VICE PRESIDENT HUBERT H. HUMPHREY  
DEMOCRATIC RALLY  
SOUTHGATE, MICHIGAN  
NOVEMBER 1, 1968

In the final days of the Presidential campaign, as the cliches cool off, as the balloons shrivel, as the slogans sink into the sunset, one issue dominates all others:

Whom do you trust with the Presidency?

Whom do you trust to stand a heartbeat from the Presidency?

Whom do you trust ... period?

The element of trust binds our Democracy together ... trust in each other carries us through difficult and turbulent times ... trust in each other gives the President and the people -- acting together -- the strength they need to build a just and prosperous society for every American citizen.

In 1960 Michigan trusted John F. Kennedy and your vote sent him to the White House.

Your votes saved America from eight more sluggish, sleepy Nixon Republican years ... and you gave John Kennedy the chance to call forth the best in America ... to speak to America's conscience and her soul ... to generate the commitment and enthusiasm which got this country moving again.

You had good reason to send John Kennedy to Washington.

In 1960 one out of every nine workers in the Detroit area was pounding the pavement looking for a job -- and the entire country was in the grip of the third Nixon-Republican recession.

Today, after eight Democratic years only one out of every thirty is unemployed in the Detroit area ... and the country is riding the crest of the 92nd consecutive month of economic expansion.

Mr. Nixon's principal economic advisor says that what America

PAGE TWO

needs today is more unemployment. I say I hope his job is the first to go.

But let's not forget what it was like in those eight Republican years ... jobs were scarce ... profits were down ... training for new jobs almost didn't exist ... overtime was unheard of ... and millions of families couldn't make ends meet.

The stakes were high in 1960 ... for you ... for your families ... for all America.

The stakes are even higher next Tuesday.

For Michigan can again hold the key to who becomes President on January 20, 1969.

And this decision will directly affect the lives of every American ... of every family in this country.

The women of America understand the stakes in this election.

As wives, as mothers ... as individuals ... they are deeply concerned that we end the war in Vietnam ... and that we then move forward to halt the nuclear arms race before the arms race halts humanity.

John Kennedy and I fought for and won a treaty to stop atomic tests in the atmosphere -- to stop the radioactive fallout from endangering your children's health.

Mr. Republican called the test ban proposal a "cruel hoax" and "catastrophic nonsense."

Now Mr. Nixon is talking about a security gap -- which doesn't exist -- and he calls for a new escalation of the nuclear arms race -- an escalation which could cost America up to 50 billion dollars a year.

I say these nuclear weapons are unnecessary ... we already possess more than any other Nation.

PAGE THREE

I want to use this money on schools, on education, on health care, on better homes for every American family.

Fifty billion dollars, for example, would provide four years worth of college tuition for over 12 million children.

Mr. Nixon seems more interested in appealing to the special interests -- to the Wall Street stock brokers, for instance, to whom he sent a secret letter promising them special treatment if he becomes President.

The Humphrey-Muskie Administration will put families before financiers. Better education ... health care ... pre-school training for every child ... improved Medicare and expanded Social Security ... day care centers for working mothers ... neighborhoods which are safe and secure, where good housing is available at reasonable cost -- that's what counts to Democrats and this will be the priority of a Humphrey-Muskie Administration.

And we must unleash the full women-power of this country.

In 1963 I sponsored an amendment to the Constitution to provide equal rights for women. We must now push forward to achieve these objectives.

I helped pass legislation which prohibits discrimination in employment on the basis of sex.

When I am President, the Federal government will be a model employer of women -- and this means from the White House on down.

For women who seek to resume their former careers or to prepare for new careers when their children are grown, we can -- and we must -- help them in this effort.

I have proposed an Adult Opportunity Act which will support continuing programs of adult education and special refresher courses.

The abilities, the skills and the energies of the women of America have too long been wasted.

PAGE FOUR

When I am President, this waste will be ended and a New Day for American women will dawn.

There is a third candidate in this election. And let's give Mr. Wallace credit -- at least he speaks out.

But voters have to ask themselves: Could Mr. Wallace govern the Nation?

And -- can he win?

I tell you a vote for Mr. Wallace is really a vote for Mr. Nixon -- and if the Republicans get in, you'll have another recession -- and you know it.

\* \* \*

I believe in change.

I believe that change is inevitable and healthy.

I believe that the duty of Democratic leadership is to welcome change, to encourage it, to guide it into peaceful paths of progress.

I have come to Michigan to ask your help next Tuesday.

In 1960 Michigan made the difference.

In 1968 you can make the difference again.

I'm asking you to vote for Ed Muskie and me.

I'm asking you to put us to work ... so we can keep you at work.

Give us your help.

####



# news release

DEMOCRATIC NATIONAL COMMITTEE • PUBLIC AFFAIRS DIVISION • 2600 VIRGINIA AVE., N.W., WASHINGTON, D.C. 20037 • 202/333-8750

For Release Friday PMS  
November 1, 1968

For Further Information:  
Ev Munsey, Ext. 201  
DC-778

## VICE PRESIDENT HUMPHREY TO ENCOURAGE 'WOMEN-POWER'

Southgate, Mich., November 1 -- Vice President Hubert H. Humphrey today pledged to encourage and promote "women-power" in his Administration.

"When I am President," declared Humphrey, "the Federal government will be a model employer of women and this means from the White House on down."

Speaking at a Democratic Party rally here, he noted that "the abilities, the skills and the energies of the women of America have too long been wasted." Vowing to end this waste, he promised that "a New Day for American women will dawn."

He referred to the Adult Opportunity Act which he recently proposed that will expand adult education programs and provide special refresher courses for "women who seek to resume their former careers or to prepare for new careers when their children are grown."

He reminded his audience that the dominant issue in this campaign is the question of trust. Asserting that trust "binds our democracy together," he noted that it was their state that "trusted John F. Kennedy" in 1960 and "sent him to the White House."

"Your votes saved America from eight more sluggish, sleepy Nixon-Republican years and you gave John Kennedy the chance to call forth the best in America, to speak to America's conscience and her soul, to generate the commitment and enthusiasm which got this country moving again."

The text of the Vice President's speech is attached.

... more

#56

FOR RELEASE: FRIDAY PM's  
November 1, 1968

REMARKS  
VICE PRESIDENT HUBERT H. HUMPHREY  
DEMOCRATIC BREAKFAST RALLY  
SOUTHGATE, MICHIGAN

November 1, 1968

In the final days of the Presidential Campaign, as the cliches cool off, as the balloons shrivel, as the slogans sink into the sunset, one issue dominates all others:

Whom do you trust with the Presidency?

Whom do you trust to stand a heartbeat from the Presidency?

Whom do you trust . . . period?

The element of trust binds our democracy together . . . trust in each other carries us through difficult and turbulent times . . . trust in each other gives the President and the people -- acting together -- the strength they need to build a just and prosperous society for every American citizen.

In 1960 Michigan trusted John F. Kennedy and your vote sent him to the White House.

Your votes saved America from eight more sluggish, sleepy Nixon Republican years . . . and you gave John Kennedy the chance to call forth the best in America . . . to speak to America's conscience and her soul . . . to generate the commitment and enthusiasm which got this country moving again.

You had good reason to send John Kennedy to Washington.

In 1960 one out of every nine workers in the Detroit area was pounding the pavement looking for a job -- and the entire country was in the grip of the third Nixon-Republican recession.

Today, after eight Democratic years only one out of every thirty is unemployed in the Detroit area . . . and the country is riding the crest of the 92nd consecutive month of economic expansion.

Mr. Nixon's principal economic advisor says that what American needs today is more unemployment. I say I hope his job is the first to go.

But let's not forget what it was like in those eight Republican years ... jobs were scarce ... profits were down ... training for new jobs almost didn't exist ... overtime was unheard of ... and many millions of families couldn't make ends meet.

The stakes were high in 1960 ... for you ... for your families ... for all America.

The stakes are even higher next Tuesday.

For Michigan can again hold the key to who becomes President on January 20, 1969.

And this decision will directly affect the lives of every American ... of every family in this country.

The women of America understand the stakes in this election.

As wives, mothers ... as individuals ... they are deeply concerned that we end the war in Vietnam ... and that we then move forward to halt the nuclear arms race before the arms race halts humanity.

John Kennedy and I fought for and won a treaty to stop atomic tests in the atmosphere -- to stop the radioactive fallout from endangering your children's health.

Mr. Republican called the test ban proposal a "cruel hoax" and "catastrophic nonsense."

Now Mr. Nixon is talking about a security gap--which doesn't exist-- and he calls for a new escalation of the nuclear arms race -- an escalation which could cost America up to 50 billion dollars a year.

I say these nuclear weapons are unnecessary ... we already possess more than any other nation.

I want to use this money on schools, on education, on health care, on better homes for every American family.

Fifty billion dollars, for example, would provide four years worth of college tuition for over 12 million children.

Mr. Nixon seems interested in appealing to the special interests -- the Wall Street stock brokers for instance, to whom he sent a secret letter promising them special treatment if he becomes President.

The Humphrey-Muskie Administration will put families before financiers. Better education ... health care... pre-school training for every child... improved Medicare and expanded Social Security ... day care centers for working mothers ... neighborhoods which are safe and secure, where good housing is available at reasonable cost -- that's what counts to Democrats and this will be the priority of a Humphrey-Muskie Administration.

And we must unleash the full women-power of this country.

In 1963 I sponsored an amendment to the Constitution to provide equal rights for women. We must now push forward to achieve these objectives.

I helped pass legislation which prohibits discrimination in employment on the basis of sex.

When I am President, the Federal Government will be a model employer of women -- and this means from the White House on down.

For women who want to resume their former careers or to prepare for new careers when their children are grown, we can--and we must--make it easier.

I have proposed an Adult Opportunity Act which will support continuing programs of adult education and special refresher courses.

The abilities, the skills and the energies of the women of American have too long been wasted.

When I am President, this waste will be ended and a New Day for American women will dawn.

There is a third candidate in this election. And let's give Mr. Wallace credit--at least he speaks out.

But voters have to ask themselves: Could Mr. Wallace govern the nation?

And -- can he win? I tell you a vote for Mr. Wallace is really a vote for Mr. Nixon. And if the Republicans get in you'll have another recession -- and you know it.

\* \* \* \* \*



I believe in change.

I believe that change is inevitable and healthy.

I believe that the duty of democratic leadership is to welcome change,  
to encourage it, to guide it into peaceful paths of progress.

I have come to Michigan to ask your help next Tuesday.

In 1960 Michigan made the difference.

In 1968 you can make the difference again.

I'm asking you to vote for Ed Muskie and me.

I'm asking you to put us to work -- so we can keep you at work.

Give us your help.

# # # #

MEMORANDUM FOR THE VICE PRESIDENT:

FACTS ON SOUTHGATE, MICHIGAN

AUDIENCE: 1,000 union members (primarily steelworkers) and wives, some retired workers.

You arrive in the middle of a Pancake Breakfast.  
Audience standing inside plain union hall.

POINTS TO HIT: Trust, Kennedy (site is JFK Memorial), Prosperity, Jobs, Women, Humphrey Presidency.

AVOID: Poverty programs.

NOTES: Wallace influence fading fast.  
Nixon was in Detroit on Tuesday, said you vacillated on Vietnam.  
The pitch is to women because polls indicate that 7 out of 10 undecided voters everywhere are women.

Martha Huff  
Jim O'Keefe  
Sandy Levin  
Pat Hoot

Phil Hart  
John Dingle  
Bill Ford  
Mary Frink

REMARKS

VICE PRESIDENT HUBERT H. HUMPHREY

Frank Kelly

DEMOCRATIC BREAKFAST RALLY

SOUTHGATE, MICHIGAN

NOVEMBER 1, 1968

In the final days of the Presidential Campaign,  
as the cliches cool off, as the balloons shrivel, as the slogans  
sink into the sunset, one issue dominates all others:

Whom do you trust with the Presidency?

Whom do you trust to stand a heartbeat from the  
Presidency?

Whom do you trust ... period?

The element of trust binds our democracy together ... trust in each other carries us through difficult and turbulent times... trust in each other gives the President and the people -- acting together -- the strength they need to build a just and prosperous society for every American citizen.

---

h In 1960, Michigan trusted John F. Kennedy and your vote sent him to the White House.

h Your votes saved America from eight more sluggish, sleepy Nixon Republican years ... and you gave John Kennedy the chance to call forth the best in America ... to speak to America's conscience and her soul ... to generate the commitment and enthusiasm which got this country moving again.

and You had good reason to send John Kennedy to Washington.

1 out of 9

In 1960, one out of every nine workers in the Detroit area was pounding the pavement looking for a job -- and the entire country was in the grip of the third Nixon-Republican recession.

L Today, after eight Democratic years, only one out of every 30 is unemployed in the Detroit area ... and the Country is riding the crest of the 92nd consecutive month of economic expansion.

L Mr. Nixon's principal economic advisor says that what America needs today is more unemployment.

I say I hope his job is the first to go.

But let's not forget what it was like in those  
eight Republican years ... jobs were scarce ... profits were  
down ... training for new jobs almost didn't exist ...  
overtime was unheard of ... and many millions of families  
couldn't make ends meet.

↳ The stakes were high in 1960 ... for you ... for  
your families ... for all America.

↳ The stakes are even higher next Tuesday.

For Michigan can again hold the key to who  
becomes President on January 20, 1969.

And this decision will directly affect the lives of  
every family in this country.

↳ The women of America understand the stakes  
in this election.

mediocre -

└ As wives, mothers ... as individuals ... they are deeply concerned that we end the war in Vietnam ... and that we then move forward to halt the nuclear arms race before the arms race halts humanity.

└ John Kennedy and I fought for and won a treaty to stop atomic tests in the atmosphere -- to stop the radioactive fallout from endangering your children's health.

└ Mr. Republican called the test ban proposal a "cruel hoax" and "catastrophic nonsense."

└ Now Mr. Nixon is talking about a security gap -- which doesn't exist -- and he calls for a new escalation of the nuclear arms race --- an escalation which would cost America up to 50 billion dollars a year.

└ I say these nuclear weapons are unnecessary ... we already possess more than any other nation.

↳ I want to use this money on schools, on education, on health care, on better homes for every American family.

↳ Fifty billion dollars, for example, would provide four years worth of college tuition for over 12 million ~~children~~ *young people*.

↳ Mr. Nixon seems interested in appealing to the special interests -- the Wall Street stockbrokers, for instance, to whom he sent a secret letter promising them special treatment if he becomes President. - *H-M - special interest group is all the people*

↳ The Humphrey-Muskie Administration will put families before financiers. Better education ... health care ... pre-school training for every child ... improved Medicare and expanded Social Security ... day-care centers for working mothers ... neighborhoods which are safe and secure, where good housing is available at reasonable cost -- that's what counts to Democrats and this will be the priority of a Humphrey-Muskie Administration.



There is a third candidate in this election.

And let's give Mr. Wallace credit --- at least he speaks out.

But voters have to ask themselves: Could Mr. Wallace govern this nation?

And --- can he win? I tell you a vote for Mr. Wallace is really a vote for Mr. Nixon. And if the Republicans get in you'll have another recession --- and you know it.

❖ ❖ ❖

I believe in change.

I believe that change is inevitable and healthy.

I believe that the duty of democratic leadership is to welcome change, to encourage it, to guide it into peaceful paths of progress.

I have come to Michigan to ask your help  
next Tuesday.

In 1960, Michigan made the difference.

In 1968, you can make the difference again.

I'm asking you to vote for Ed Muskie and me.

I'm asking you to put us to work --- so we  
can keep you at work.

Give us your help.

# # #

REMARKS

VICE PRESIDENT HUBERT H. HUMPHREY  
DEMOCRATIC RALLY  
SOUTHGATE, MICHIGAN  
NOVEMBER 1, 1968

FRI PM.  
SOUTHGATE

IN THE FINAL DAYS OF THE PRESIDENTIAL CAMPAIGN, AS THE CLICHES COOL OFF, AS THE BALLOONS SHRIVEL, AS THE SLOGANS SINK INTO THE SUNSET, ONE ISSUE DOMINATES ALL OTHERS:

WHOM DO YOU TRUST WITH THE PRESIDENCY?

WHOM DO YOU TRUST TO STAND A HEARTBEAT FROM THE PRESIDENCY?

WHOM DO YOU TRUST . . . PERIOD?

THE ELEMENT OF TRUST BINDS OUR DEMOCRACY TOGETHER . . . TRUST IN EACH OTHER CARRIES US THROUGH DIFFICULT AND TURBULENT TIMES . . . TRUST IN EACH OTHER GIVES THE PRESIDENT AND THE PEOPLE -- ACTING TOGETHER -- THE STRENGTH THEY NEED TO BUILD A JUST AND PROSPEROUS SOCIETY FOR EVERY AMERICAN CITIZEN.

IN 1960 MICHIGAN TRUSTED JOHN F. KENNEDY AND YOUR VOTE SENT HIM TO THE WHITE HOUSE.

YOUR VOICES SAVED AMERICA FROM EIGHT MORE SLUGGISH, SLEEPY NIXON REPUBLICAN YEARS . . . AND YOU GAVE JOHN KENNEDY THE CHANCE TO CALL FORTH THE BEST IN AMERICA . . . TO SPEAK TO AMERICA'S CONSCIENCE AND HER SOUL . . . TO GENERATE THE COMMITMENT AND ENTHUSIASM WHICH GOT THIS COUNTRY MOVING AGAIN.

YOU HAD GOOD REASON TO SEND JOHN KENNEDY TO WASHINGTON.

IN 1960 ONE OUT OF EVERY NINE WORKERS IN THE DETROIT AREA WAS POUNDING THE PAVEMENT LOOKING FOR A JOB -- AND THE ENTIRE COUNTRY WAS IN THE GRIP OF THE THIRD NIXON-REPUBLICAN RECESSION.

TODAY, AFTER EIGHT DEMOCRATIC YEARS ONLY ONE OUT OF EVERY THIRTY (OLINE THIRTY) IS UNEMPLOYED IN THE DETROIT AREA . . . AND THE COUNTRY IS RIDING THE CREST OF THE 92ND CONSECUTIVE MONTH OF ECONOMIC EXPANSION.

MR. NIXON'S PRINCIPAL ECONOMIC ADVISOR SAYS THAT WHAT AMERICA NEEDS TODAY IS MORE UNEMPLOYMENT. I SAY I HOPE HIS JOB IS THE FIRST TO GO.

BUT LET'S NOT FORGET WHAT IT WAS LIKE IN THOSE EIGHT REPUBLICAN YEARS . . . JOBS WERE SCARCE . . . PROFITS WERE DOWN . . . TRAINING FOR NEW JOBS ALMOST DIDN'T EXIST . . . OVERTIME WAS UNHEARD OF . . . AND MILLIONS OF FAMILIES COULDN'T MAKE ENDS MEET.

THE STAKES WERE HIGH IN 1960 . . . FOR YOU . . . FOR YOUR FAMILIES . . . FOR ALL AMERICA.

THE STAKES WERE EVEN HIGHER NEXT TUESDAY.

FOR MICHIGAN CAN AGAIN HOLD THE KEY TO WHO BECOMES PRESIDENT ON JANUARY 20, 1969.

AND THIS DECISION WILL DIRECTLY AFFECT THE LIVES OF EVERY AMERICAN . . . OF EVERY FAMILY IN THIS COUNTRY.

THE WOMEN OF AMERICA UNDERSTAND THE STAKES IN THIS ELECTION.

2  
AS WIVES, AS MOTHERS . . . AS INDIVIDUALS . . . THEY ARE  
DEEPLY CONCERNED THAT WE END THE WAR IN VIETNAM . . . AND THAT WE THEN  
MOVE FORWARD TO HALT THE NUCLEAR ARMS RACE BEFORE THE ARMS RACE  
HALTS HUMANITY.

JOHN KENNEDY AND I FOUGHT FOR AND WON A TREATY TO STOP ATOMIC  
TESTS IN THE ATMOSPHERE -- TO STOP THE RADIOACTIVE FALLOUT FROM  
ENDANGERING YOUR CHILDREN'S HEALTH.

MR. REPUBLICAN CALLED THE TEST BAN PROPOSAL A "CRUEL HOAX" AND  
"CATASTROPHIC NONSENSE."

NOW MR. NIXON IS TALKING ABOUT A SECURITY GAP -- WHICH DOESN'T  
EXIST -- AND YHE CALLS FOR A NEW ESCALATION OF THE NUCLEAR ARMS  
RACE -- AND ESCALATION WHICH COULD COST AMERICA UP TO 50 BILLION  
DOLLARS A YEAR.

I SAY THESE NUCLEAR WEAPONS ARE UNNECESSARY . . . WE ALREADY  
POSSESS MORE THAN ANY OTHER NATION.

I WANT TO USE THIS MONEY ON SCHOOLS, ON EDUCATION, ON HEALTH  
CARE, ON BETTER HOMES FOR EVERY AMERICAN FAMILY.

FIFTY BILLION DOLLARS, FOR EXAMPLE, WOULD PROVIDE FOUR YEARS  
WORTH OF COLLEGE TUITION FOR OVER 12 MILLION CHILDREN.

MR. NIXON SEEMS MORE INTERESTED IN APPEALING TO THE SPECIAL  
INTERESTS -- TO THE WALL STREET STOCK BROKERS FOR INSTANCE, TO WHOM  
HE SENT A LESECREET LETTER PROMISING THEM SEPECIAL TREATMENT IF HE  
BECOMES PRESIDENT.

THE HUMPHREY-MUSKIE ADMINISTRATION WILL PUT FAMILIES BEFORE  
FINANCIERS. BETTER EDUCATION . . . HEALTH CARE . . . PRE-SCHOOL  
TRAINING FOR EVERY CHILD . . . IMPROVED MEDICARE AND EXPANDED SOCIAL  
SECURITY . . . DAY CARE CENTERS FOR WORKING MOTHERS . . . NEIGHBORHOODS  
WHICH ARE SAFE AND SECURE, WHERE GOOD HOUSING IS AVAILABLE AT  
REASONABLE COST -- THAT'S WHAT COUNTS TO DEMOCRATS AND THIS WILL BE  
THE PRIORITY OF A HUMPHREY-MUSKIE ADMINISTRATION.

2 INSERT

INSERT:

And we must unleash the full women-power of this country.

In 1963 I sponsored an amendment to the Constitution to provide equal rights for women. We must now push forward to achieve these objectives.

I helped pass legislation which prohibits discrimination in employment on the basis of sex.

When I am President, the Federal government will be a model employer of women -- and this means from the White House on down.

For women who seek to resume their former careers or to prepare for new careers when their children are grown, we can -- and we must -- help them in this effort.

I have proposed an Adult Opportunity Act which will support continuing programs of adult education and special refresher courses.

The abilities, the skills and the energies of the women of America have too long been wasted.

When I am President, this waste will be ended and a New Day for American women will dawn.

4  
THERE IS A THIRD CANDIDATE IN THIS ELECTION. AND LET'S GIVE  
MR. WALLACE CREDIT -- AT LEAST HE SPEAKS OUT.

BUT VOTERS HAVE TO ASK THEMSELVES: COULD MR. WALLACE GOVERN  
THE NATION?

AND -- CAN HE WIN?

I TELL YOU A VOTE FOR MR. WALLACE IS REALLY A VOTE FOR  
MR. NIXON -- AND IF THE REPUBLICANS GET IN, YOU'LL HAVE ANOTHER  
RECESSION -- AND YOU KNOW IT.

\* \* \*

I BELIEVE IN CHANGE.

I BELIEVE THAT CHANGE IS INEVITABLE AND HEALTHY.

I BELIEVE THAT THE DUTY OF DEMOCRATIC LEADERSHIP IS TO WELCOME  
CHANGE, TO ENCOURAGE IT, TO GUIDE IT INTO PEACEFUL PATHS OF PROGRESS.

I HAVE COME TO MICHIGAN TO ASK YOUR HELP NEXT TUESDAY.

IN 1960 MICHIGAN MADE THE DIFFERENCE.

IN 1968 YOU CAN MAKE THE DIFFERENCE AGAIN.

I'M ASKING YOU TO VOTE FOR ED MUSKIE AND ME.

I'M ASKING YOU TO PUT US TO WORK . . . SO WE CAN KEEP YOU AT  
WORK.

GIVE US YOUR HELP.

# # #

END OF TEXT

UAD

Friday PM 2

REMARKS  
VICE PRESIDENT HUBERT H. HUMPHREY

~~NOT FOR RELEASE~~

~~Democratic Breakfast Rally~~  
~~BATTLE CREEK, MICHIGAN~~

Southgate, Michigan

~~October 1968~~  
November 1, 1968

In the final days of the Presidential Campaign, as the cliches cool off,  
as the balloons <sup>shrink</sup> ~~burst~~, as the slogans sink into the sunset, one issue dominates  
all others:

Whom do you trust with the Presidency?

Whom do you trust to stand a heartbeat from the Presidency?

Whom do you trust . . . period?

The element of trust binds our democracy together . . . trust in each other  
carries us through difficult and turbulent times . . . trust in each other gives  
the President and the people --acting together--the strength they need to build  
a just and prosperous society for every American citizen.

Ed Muskie and I have come to you with our campaign. We have the dust of  
America on our shoes. We have shaken your hands and looked into your eyes. We  
have heard your cheers and we have listened to your complaints.

Because we care . . . because Democrats always care about people.

We have told the people the truth . . . about peace in Vietnam . . . and how  
we hope to end that tragic war.

My Republican opponent has said nothing.

We have told the truth about law and order . . . about how we can make America  
safe once again . . . by supporting our local police with better pay, better  
training, better equipment. And we have given you specific plans about how this  
will be done.

*family*

In 1960 Michigan ~~was~~ <sup>Trusted</sup> John F. Kennedy <sup>and you vote slushkin</sup> to the White House.

Your votes saved America from eight more sluggish, sleepy Nixon Reublican years. . . and you ~~gave~~ <sup>gave</sup> John Kennedy the ~~chance~~ chance to call forth the best in America. . . to speak to America's conscience and her soul. . . to generate the commitment and enthusiasm which got this country moving again.

You had good reason to send John Kennedy to Washington.

In 1960 one out of every nine workers in the Detroit area ~~was~~ was pounding the pavement looking for a job--and the entire ~~nation~~ country was in the grip of the third Nixon-Republican recession.

Today <sup>after eight Democratic years only</sup> one out of every thirty is ~~looking for~~ <sup>unemployed</sup> ~~work~~ in the Detroit area. . . and the country is ~~is~~ riding the crest of the 92nd ~~year~~ consecutive month of economic expansion.

Mr. Nixon's principal economic advisor ~~recently~~ ~~says~~ says that what America needs today is slightly more unemployment. I say I hope his job is the first to go.

But let's not forget what it was like in those



2/

eight Republican years. . . jobs were scarce. . . profits were down. . . training for new jobs almost didn't exist. . . overtime was unheard of. . . and many millions of families couldn't make ends meet.

The stakes were high in 1960. . . for you. . . for your families. . . for all America.

~~Consider for a moment what would have happened if Michigan hadn't sent John Kennedy to the White House.~~

~~*all of us*  
He would have paid ~~for~~ a heavy price:  
older and their families  
--20 million Americans/would still live in fear  
of hospital and doctor bills .~~

~~Because the Nixon Republicans <sup>never</sup> would have ~~never~~ passed Medicare.~~

~~--16 million children would still be ~~being~~ in  
~~in~~ crowded classrooms, outdated libraries, and  
delapidated schools.~~

~~Because the Nixon Republicans <sup>never</sup> would ~~never~~ have  
passed Federal aid to education.~~

~~--9 million workers would still be toiling for  
indecent wages. ~~never~~ There would be no expanded  
coverage of the minimum wage law or a higher minimum  
wage for the 32 million workers already covered.~~

~~Because the Nixon Republicans <sup>never would have</sup> ~~never~~ ~~extended or increased~~  
~~and increase of~~ minimum wages.~~

3/

The stakes are even <sup>higher</sup> ~~greater~~ next Tuesday,  
~~when you enter the voting booth.~~

<sup>For</sup>  
^ Michigan can again hold the key to who becomes  
President on January 20, 1969.

And this decision will directly affect the lives  
of every American. . . of every family in this  
country.

The women of America understand the stakes in  
this election.

<sup>As wives,</sup>  
<sup>As mothers.</sup> . . as individuals. . . they are  
deeply concerned that we end the war in Vietnam. . .  
and that we then ~~we~~ move forward to ~~halt~~ halt the  
nuclear arms race ~~we~~ before the arms race halts  
humanity.

My entire public career has been directed to  
finding ~~serious workable alternatives~~ <sup>the best ones</sup> solutions  
to ~~the~~ acceptable alternatives to nuclear terror--  
~~serious~~ alternatives which do not endanger our national  
defense but provide a greater measure of national security.

4/

John Kennedy and I fought for and won a treaty to stop ~~stop~~ atomic tests in the atmosphere---to stop the radioactive fallout from poisoning ~~your~~ milk and endangering your children's health.

Mr. Republican opponents called the test ban proposal a "cruel hoax" and "catastrophic nonsense."

Now Mr. Nixon is talking about a security gap--which ~~the facts~~ <sup>According to</sup> doesn't exist--and <sup>he</sup> calls for a new ~~escalation~~ <sup>nuclear</sup> escalation of the arms race--an escalation which could cost America up to 50 billion dollars a year.

<sup>we already possess more than any other nation,</sup> I say these nuclear weapons are unnecessary. . .  
I want to use this money on schools, on education, on health care, on better homes for every American family.

50 billion dollars, for example, <sup>would</sup> provide <sup>for years worth of college tuition</sup> ~~for over 12~~ 12 million children ~~with a four-year college education.~~

<sup>For in</sup> the last eight years, the Democrats ~~have~~ <sup>stopped</sup> the sale of drugs that would produce deformities in unborn children. . .  
protected your children from dangerous toys. . . from baby blankets that burst into flame. . . from impure meats. . . from unsafe cars. . . from deceptive packaging and false ~~advertising~~ advertising.

And we had to fight the Nixon ~~Republican~~ Republicans

(The stakes for your family were high indeed.)

on every consumer protection proposal.

Mr. Nixon is more interested in appealing to ~~the~~ the special interests--the Wall Street stock brokers for instance, to whom he sent a secret letter ~~was~~ promising them special treatment if he becomes President.

The Humphrey-Muskie will ~~act to strengthen~~ <sup>put families before financiers</sup> the families of America... ~~through~~ <sup>with</sup> better education... health care... pre-school training for every child... day care centers <sup>for working mothers... and</sup> neighborhoods which are safe and secure, ~~and~~ where good housing is available ~~at~~ at reasonable cost. <sup>That's what counts to Democrats and that will be the priority of Humphrey-Muskie's administration</sup> And we must unleash the full women-power ~~in~~ <sup>of this country</sup> ~~America~~.

In 1963 I sponsored an amendment to the Constitution to provide equal rights for women. We ~~must~~ must now push forward to achieve these objectives.

I helped pass legislation which ~~prohibits~~ prohibits discrimination in employment on the basis of sex.

When I am President, the Federal Government will be a model employer of women--and this means from the White House on down.

For ~~the~~ women who seek to resume their former careers or to prepare for new careers when ~~their~~ <sup>grown</sup> their children are ~~grown~~, we can--and we must--~~make it more possible to~~ <sup>make it more possible to</sup> ~~do~~ <sup>easier to do.</sup>

through improved Medicare and expanded social security...

6/

I have proposed an Adult Opportunity Act which will support continuing programs of adult education and special refresher courses.

The abilities, the skills and the energies of the women of America have too long been wasted .

When I am President, this ~~will be a waste~~ waste will be stopped. ~~and that women of America will be~~ ended and a New Day for American women will dawn.

for HHH insert and emphasis in all final statements  
griffith

One political factor is clear in this somewhat confusing  
political year.

The American people are not satisfied with the-way-things-  
are. They want a change.

So do I.

And as President I will make changes.

A Humphrey Presidency will be a new and creative Presidency.

<sup>-Mumford</sup>  
A Humphrey Administration will be a new and imaginative Admin-  
istration.

A Humphrey Cabinet will be a new and <sup>(INNOVATIVE)</sup> energetic Cabinet.

<sup>-Mumford</sup>  
In January---under the new Humphrey Administration---there will  
be new faces throughout government.

~~There will be new ideas---fresh and imaginative ideas---to tackle  
the old but urgent problems of our nation.~~

~~There will be new programs---bold and original programs---to  
meet the new challenges of this generation.~~

(more)



There will be new leadership---vibrant and responsive leadership---to guide this nation and society <sup>in these Challenging times</sup> ~~out of the present deliriums of democracy.~~

I am proud that I have convictions and principles which remained unbroken through a lifetime of practical political service.

*could we have this out?*  
I am not ashamed that I have served my nation and the present Administration positively and loyally.

But if one characteristic stands out in my life and career, it is this:

I believe in change.

I believe that change is inevitable and healthy.

I believe that the duty of democratic leadership is to welcome change, <sup>to</sup> encourage it, ~~nurture it into social growth and improvement,~~ to guide it onto peaceful paths ~~and~~ of progress.

~~I have never and will never glue myself to the programs of the past or the policies of the present.~~

<sup>changing</sup>  
This is a changing nation and world.

(more)

~~3~~  
[50] Make no mistake: Washington will be a changed and changing  
place under the <sup>Humphrey-Muskie</sup> ~~new~~ Administration, and ~~fresh leadership of the~~  
~~Humphrey Presidency.~~

~~4~~  
I have ~~ix~~ come to Michigan to ask your help next  
Tuesday.

In 1960 Michigan made the difference. ~~between~~

In 1968 ~~it~~ you can make the difference again.

I'm asking ~~ym~~ you to vote for Ed Muskie and me.

I'm asking you to put us to work.

I'm asking you to roll up your sleeves and get on the  
team- - be part of this generation of greatness--this  
generation that says to the 20th century:

--You haven't seen anything yet!

~~4~~





# Minnesota Historical Society

Copyright in this digital version belongs to the Minnesota Historical Society and its content may not be copied without the copyright holder's express written permission. Users may print, download, link to, or email content, however, for individual use.

To request permission for commercial or educational use, please contact the Minnesota Historical Society.



[www.mnhs.org](http://www.mnhs.org)